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Board of Directors’ Report

The Board of Directors of Sharjah Insurance Company has the honor io disclose the audited
financial statements for 31 December 2022.

The following is a brief summary of the results of the company’s operaiions for the year ended
31 December 2022 .

First: Insurance Activity:

In the interest of the Board of Directors’ of the Company to maintain the technical profits
achieved in the past two years, the company has continued a conservative underwriting policy
to select the business according to the technical results reached as follows:

Operational Resulis:

- Total written premium for 2022 amounted AED 23 million compared to AED 25.5
million for year 2021, the net retained premium for 2022 amounted to AED 3.3 million

compared to AED 10.2 million in 2021.
- Net operating profit for the year 2022 was AED 0.16 million compared to AED 3.5

million.

Second: Investment Activity:

- Investment profits for the year 2022 amounted to AED 32.6 million compared to
AED 24.3 million in 2021.

- As per the statement of cashflows, The Company acquired financial assets through
profit or loss amounted to AED 118.8 million during the year compared to 124.4
million in 2021, and sold financial assets through profit and loss and financial assets
through other comprehensive income amounted to AED 95.2 million and AED 9.9
million compared to AED 38.6 million and AED 61.3 million in 2021, respectively.

The Company’s net profit for the year 2022 amounted to AED 31 million compared to
AED 27,2 million for the year 2021.

The main objective of the company’s board of directors and its executive management is to
maintain and develop the economic entity fo the benefits of the country, the citizens and the
investors. Therefore, we are committed to be in the ranks of the competitive Company’s
professionality and committed to apply the highest standards of quality and management
governance to meet the requirements of ransparency and disclosure.
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- The company renewed the Reinsurance agreement for 2023 on technical basis to ensure the
continuation of the underwriting performance and expansion of its operation .

-Based on these results and in accordance with notice No . CBUAEBSD/2022/4697, the
Board of Directors has decided to approach the Central Bank of the UAE to obtain approval
for the announcement of proposed dividend for the year 2022 to shareholders.

-Finally , I would like fo thank the Board of Directors and employees for their efforts and
hope greater efforts to be done to continue the successful journey .

Yours faithfully

Abhmed Mohamed Hamad Al Midfa

Chairman
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Shareholders of Sharjah Insurance Company P.S.C.

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Sharjah Insurance Company P.S.C. (the “Company”), which
comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022, and the related statements of income,
statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year
then ended and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the
Company as at 31 December 2022, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISA). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditot’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountant’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) together with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the United Atab Emirates,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the requirements of IESBA Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, wete of most significance in our audit of
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2022. These mattets were addressed
in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion theteon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Shareholders of Sharjah Insurance Company P.S.C. (continued)

Report on the audit of the financial statements (continued)

Key audit matters (continued)

i)

Valuation of insurance contract liabilities

The estimation of liabilities arising from insurance contracts amounting to AED 35.6 million such as
outstanding claims, incurted but not reported claims, unallocated loss adjustment expenses and
unearned premium reserve, as disclosed in note 10 to the financial statements, involves a significant
degtee of judgement. These liabilities are based on the best-estimated ultimate cost of all claims incurtred
but not settled at 2 given date, whether reported or not, together with the related claims handling costs
and the pattern of risk distribution over the coverage petiod. Actuarial computations have been used to
determine these provisions. Underlying these computations are a number of explicit or implicit
assumptions relating to the expected settlement amount and settlement pattetns of claims. Since the
determination of such a provision requires the expertise of an external valuation expert who
incorporates significant assumptions, judgements and estimations, the valuation of these liabilities wete
significant to our audit.

We assessed management’s calculations of the insurance contract liabilities by performing the following
procedures:

®  Understood the governance process in place to determine the insurance contract liabilities,

® Tested the undetlying company data to source documentation on sample basis;

e Applied our industty knowledge and expetience and compared the methodology, models and
assumptions used against tecognised actuarial practices;

®  We assessed the competence, capabilities, and objectivity of the management actuarial specialist;

® Reperformed computations on selected classes of business, particulatly focusing on the latgest and most

uncettain reserves, then compared our re-computed claims reserves to those booked by management,
and sought to understand any significant differences;

® For the remaining classes, we evaluated the methodology and assumptions, or performed a diagnostic
check to identify and follow up any anomalies; and
® Weinvolved our own actuadal specialist to assist us in petforming our procedures in this area,

Valuation of investment properties

The Company holds investment properties under the fair value method as at 31 December 2022
amounting to AED 53.1 million, as detailed in note 7. The fair value estimate requires significant
judgement and estimates by management and independent external valuer. The Company has involved
an independent extetnal valuer in order to value the investment properties for the purpose of
determining the fair value for inclusion in the financial statements. The existence of significant
estimation and judgement coupled with change in valuation assumptions used could tesult in material
change. Therefore, the valuation of these investment properties was significant to our audit.

Our audit procedures, among others, included:

® We assessed the competence, capabilities, and objectivity of external valuers appointed by the
management; and

® We understood the basis of valuation for each property and other judgements vsed in performing the
valuaton;

® We checked the accuracy and relevance of the input data used for detiving fair values; and

® We assessed the appropriateness of the key assumptions and methodologies used.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Shareholders of Sharjah Insurance Company P.S.C. (continued)

Report on the audit of the financial statements (continued)

Other Information

The Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The othet information comptises the annual
report of the Company. We obtained the Directors’ report, ptior to the date of this auditor’s report and the
remaining information of the annual report expected to be made available to us after that date.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance or conclusion theteon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, out responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the othet information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
petformed on the other information that we obtained ptiot to the date of this auditot’s repott, we conclude that
there is a matetial misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to

teport in this regard.

When we tead the Company’s Annual Reportt, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement thetein, we ate
requited to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and take appropriate actions in accordance
with ISAs.

Responsibilities of the Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards and their preparation in compliance with the applicable provisions of
the UAE Federal Law No. (32) of 2021, and the UAE Federal Law No. 6 of 2007(as amended), and for such internal
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company ot to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as 2 whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditot’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs will always detect 2 material misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.



o Grant Thornton

. .:.

Y

Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Shareholders of Sharjah Insurance Company P.S.C. (continued)
Report on the audit of the financial statements (continued)

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or etror, design and petform audit procedures responsive to those risk, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and approptiate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a matetial
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omission, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an undetstanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedutes
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosutes made by management.

° Conclude on the approptiateness of management use of the going concern basis of accounting and
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists telated to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concetn. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those chatrged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may treasonably be thought to beatr on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that wete of
most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and ate therefore the key audit
matters, We describe these matters in our auditot’s report unless law and regulations preclude public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare citcumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the advetse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Shareholders of Shatjah Insurance Company P.S.C. (continued)

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Furthet, as requited by the UAE Federal Law No. (32) of 2021, we teport that:

i)

we have obtained all the information we considered necessary for the purposes of our audit;

the financial statements have been prepared and comply, in all matetial respects, with the applicable
provisions of the UAE Federal Law No. 32 of 2021,

the Company has maintained proper books of account;

the financial information included in the Ditectors’ report is consistent with the books of account of the
Company;

as disclosed in Note 8 to the financial statements, the Company has investments in securities as at
31 December 2022;

Note 23 to the financial statements discloses material related party transactions and balances, and the terms
undet which they were conducted; and

based on the information that has been made available to us nothing has come to our attention which causes
us to believe that the Company has, duting the financial year ended 31 December 2022, contravened any of
the applicable provisions of the UAE Federal Law No. 32 of 2021, or its Articles of Association, which
would materially affect its activities or its financial position as at 31 December 2022.

The Company did not make any social conttibutions during the financial year ended 31 December 2022.

Further, as requited by the U.A.E. Federal Law No. 6 of 2007(as amended) and the related Financial Regulations
for Insurance Companies, we report that we have obtained all the information and explanations we considered

necessary for the purpose of our audit.
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Sharjah Insurance Company P.S.C.
Financial statcments

Statement of financial position
As at 31 December 2022

Notes 2022 2021
AED AED
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property and equipment 5 1,294,619 2,362,070
Intangible assets 6 73,409 180,253
Investment properties 7 53,104,355 51,949.400
Investments designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income (FVOCI) 8.1 36,986,809 50,685,171
Statutory deposit 9 5,000,000 5,000,000
Total non-curtent assets 96,459,192 110,176,894
Current assets
Reinsurance contract assets 10 22,990,677 25,740,433
Insurance and other receivables 1 14,769,346 22,176,879
Investments at fair value through profit or loss (FVIPL) 8.2 134,255,729 108,714,402
Bank balances and cash 2 39,180,351 54,131,325
Total current assets 211,196,103 210,763,039
Total asscts 307,655,295 320,939,933
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Capital and rescrves
Share capital 13 150,000,000 137,500,000
Statutory reserve 14.1 54,811,157 51,707,121
Voluntary reserve 14.2 30,000,000 30,000,000
Reinsurance reserve 14.3 299,957 196,889
Cumulative changg in fair value of financial
investments designated at FVOCL (115,520,843) (111,624,590)
Retained earnings 129,014,494 122,515,004
Total equity 248,604,765 230,294,424
Non-current liabilities
Provision for employees’ end of service indemnity 15 856,730 964,807
Lease liabilitics 17 468,179 1410124
Total Non-cuttent liabilities 1,324,909 2,374,931
Current liabilities
Insurance contract liabilitics 10 35,567,273 44,201,350
Insurance and other payables 16 21,399,038 23,318,049
Lease liabilides 17 750,845 874,691
Bank overdrafis 22 8,465 19,876,488
Total current liabilities 57,725,621 88,270,578
Total liabilitics 59,050,530 90,645,509
T'otal equity andiliabilities 307,655,295 320,939,933

[ /[

~Chairman Managing Dircctor

The accompanying notes from 1 to 32 an integral part of these financial statements.
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Sharjah Insurance Company P.S.C.
Financial statements

Statement of income
For the year ended 31 December 2022

Gross written premiums
Reinsurance premiums ceded
Net insurance premium revenue

Net change in unearned premiums and unexpired risk reserve

Net premiums earned

Commissions earned
Commissions incurtred

Gross underwriting income

Gross claims paid
Reinsurance share of claims paid
Net claims paid

Net change in insurance conttact liabilities
Net claims incurred

Other income related to underwriting activities

Underwriting profit

General and administrative expenses relating to
underwriting activities

Net underwriting profit

Investment and other income, net

Change in fair value of investment propetties
Finance costs

Finance cost-lease liability

Reversal of impairment

Unallocated general and administrative expenses
Profit for the year

Basic and diluted earnings per share (Restated —
Note 21)

Notes

18
18

18

10
10

10

20

1
20

21

2022 2021
AED AED
22,950,024 25,453,063
(20,613,680) (18,107,380)
2,336,344 7,345,683
1,009,271 2,858,115
3,345,615 10,203,798
5,883,988 4,979,566
(1,807,968) (1,882,624)
7,421,635 13,300,740
(11,590,497) (10,944,963)
7,657,739 4,037,527
(3,932,758) (6,907,436)
4,875,050 5,313,518
942,292 (1,593,018)
344,185 1,450,502
8,708,112 13,157,324
(8,548,767) (9,617,962)
159,345 3,539,362
32,572,022 24,259,571
1,154,955 (1,500,600)
(417,231) (104,998)
(70,123) (99,685)

£ 3,878,126
(2,358,606) (2,745,699)
31,040,362 27,226,077
0.21 0.18

The accompanying notes from 1 to 32 an integral part of these financial statements.




Sharjah Insurance Company P.S.C.
Financial statements

Statement of comprehensive income
For the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021
AED AED
Profit for the year 31,040,362 27,226,077
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss
Net change in fair value of equity insttuments designated
at FVOCI (3,896,253) 25,008,114
Gain on sale of equity instruments designated at FVOCI 2,176,732 587,428
Other comprehensive (loss)/income for the year (1,719,521) 25,595,542
Total comprehensive income for the year 29,320,841 52,821,619

The accompanying notes from 1 to 32 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Sharjah Insurance Company P.S.C.
Financial statements

Statement of cash flows
For the year ended 31 December 2022

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit for the year

Adjustments to reconcile profit for the year to net cash flows:

Depreciation of property and equipment
Amortization of intangible assets
Reversal of expected ctedit losses
Provision for employees’ end of service indemnity
Change in fair value of investment propetties
Directots’ remuneration
Investment income
Finance cost
Operating cash flows before changes in
operating assets and liabilities
Change in reinsurance contract assets
Change in insurance contract liabilities
Change in insurance and other receivables
Change in insurance and other payables
Cash (used in)/generated from operations
Employees’ end of service indemnity paid
Directors” remuneration paid

Net cash (used in)/generated from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property and equipment

Purchase of intangible assets

Purchase of investments designated at FVOCI

Purchase of investments at FVIPL

Proceeds from disposal of investments designated at
FVOCI

Proceeds from disposal of investments at FVIPL

Change in fixed deposits

Interest income received

Dividend income received

Other investment (expense)/income

Net income from investment properties

Net cash generated from/(used in) investing activities

Notes

A

15

29
19

15
29

8.2
8.2

19

2022 2021

AED AED
31,040,362 27,226,077
871,298 1,105,802
114,205 78,114

5 (3,878,126)

102,593 181,820
(1,154,955) 1,500,600
750,000 400,000
(32,572,022) (24,259,571)
487,354 204,683
(361,165) 2,559,399
2,749,756 (2,110,691)
(8,634,077) (6,060,942)
7,407,533 9,929,972
(1,919,011) 3,683,211
(756,964) 8,000,049
(210,670) (352,623)
(750,000) (400,000)
(1,717,634) 7,248,326
(58,512) (268,535)
(7,361) (26,679)
(108,477) i
(118,772,956) (124,457,323)
12,087,318 61,284,101
109,326,461 43,144,741
. 10,846,938

147,014 146,669
14,055,622 4,754,245
(222,055) 335,182
2,473,806 2,438,314
18,920,860 (1,802,347)

The accompanying notes from 1 to 32 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Sharjah Insurance Company P.S.C.
Financial statements

Statement of cash flows (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

Cash flows from financing activities
Interest paid

Lease liability paid

Dividends paid

Net cash used in financing activities
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Non-cash transactions, net

Bonus shares

Movement in rights of use assets

Lease liabilities

(Gain)/Loss on cancellation of lease under IFRS 16

2022 2021
AED AED

(417,231) (104,998)

(858,446) (496,702)

29 (11,010,500) (9,625,000)
(12,286,177) (10,226,700)

4,917,049 (4,780,721)

29,254,837 34,035,558

22 34,171,886 29,254,837
12,500,000 ;

(254,665) (541,795)

277,468 574,699

(22,803) 32,904

The accompanying notes from 1 to 32 form an integral part of these financial statements.

13



Sharjah Insurance Company P.S.C.
Financial statements

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2022

1. General information

Shatjah Insurance Company P.S.C. - Shatjah (the "Company") is incorporated as a public shareholding company by an
Amiri Decree issued by His Highness, The Ruler of Shatjah on 8 March 1970. The Company is subject to the regulations
of U.A.E. Federal Law No. 6 of 2007, on Establishment of Insurance Authority and Otganization of its Operations
and is registered in the Insurance Companies register of the Central Bank of the U.A.E. (“CBUAE”) (formetly Insurance
Authority of U.A.E.) under registration No.12. The Company opetates through its head office in Shatjah and has
branches in Dubai and Ajman. The addtess of the Company’s registered office is P.O. Box 792, Shatjah, United Atab
Emirates.

The principal activity of the Company is dealing in property and non-propetty insurance and life insurance. The
Company mainly carties out general insurance business.

Federal Law By Decree No. 32 of 2021 on Commercial Companies (the “New Companies Law”) was issued on
September 20, 2021 with an effective date of January 2, 2022, and will entirely replace Federal Law No. 2 of 2015, as
amended, on Commercial Companies. The Company has twelve months from the effective date to comply with the
provisions of the New Companies Law. The Company is currently in the process of amending the statutory documents,
to reflect the changes required due to application of the UAE Federal law No. (32) of 2021.

On 9 December 2022, the UAE Ministty of Finance released the Federal Decree-Law No. 47 of 2022 on the Taxation
of Corporations and Businesses (the Law) to enact a Federal corporate tax (CT) regime in the UAE. The CT regime
will become effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 June 2023.

A rate of 9% will apply to taxable income exceeding a particular threshold to be prescribed by way of a Cabinet Decision
(expected to be AED 375,000 based on information released by the Ministry of Finance), a rate of 0% will apply to
taxable income not exceeding this threshold and a rate of 0% on qualifying income of free zone entities. In addition,
there are several other decisions that are yet to be finalized by way of a Cabinet Decision that are significant in order
for entities to determine their tax status and taxable income. Therefore, pending such important decisions, the Company
has considered that the Law, as it currently stands, is not substantively enacted as at December 31, 2022 from the
perspective of IAS 12 — Income Taxes.

The Company shall continue to monitor the timing of the issuance of these critical Cabinet Decisions to determine
their tax status and the application of IAS 12 — Income Taxes. The Company is currently in the process of assessing the
possible impact on the financial statements, both from current and deferred tax perspective, once the Law becomes
substantively enacted.

2. Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
2.1 Standards, interpretations and amendments to existing standards effective from 1 January 2022

Following televant new amendments to existing standards were issued by the IASB, which are effective for the annual
petiod beginning on or after 1 January 2022 do not have a significant impact on the Company’s financial results ot
position include:

° COVID-19 Rent telated concessions beyond 30 June 2021 (Amendments to IFRS 16). The amendment
applies to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021,

e Reference to the Conceptual Framework (Amendments to IFRS 3) with effective date 1 January 2022.

® Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract (Amendments to LAS 37) with effective date 1 January
2022.

. Propertty, Plant and Equipment — Proceeds before Intended Use (Amendments to IAS 16) with effective
date 1 January 2022,

° Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020 (IFRS 1, IFRS 9, IFRS 16 and IAS 41) with effective

date 1 January 2022

14



Sharjah Insurance Company P.S.C.
Financial statements

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

2. Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) (continued)
2.2 Amendment to standards and interpretations issued but not yet effective

The impact of the new standards, interpretations and amendments that are issued, but not yet effective, up to the date
of issuance of the Company’s financial statements are disclosed below. The Company intends to adopt these standards,
if applicable, when they become effective.

IERS 17 Insutance Contracts (1 January 2023)

Once effective, IFRS 17 will replace IFRS 4 the cutrent insurance contracts standard, and it is expected to significantly
change the way the Company measures and reports its insurance contracts. The overall objective of the new standard
is to provide an accounting model for insurance contracts that is more useful and consistent for users. IFRS 17 applies
to insurance contracts (including reinsurance contracts) an entity issues, reinsurance contracts an entity holds and
investment contracts with discretionary patticipation features an entity issues provided it also issues insurance contracts

The scope of IFRS 17 for the Company is matedally consistent with that of IFRS 4. IFRS 17 requires that contracts are
divided into groups fot the purposes of recognition and measurement. Portfolios of contracts are identified by grouping
together contracts which have similar tisks and ate managed togethet. These groups ate then further divided into groups
based on their expected profitability.

Contracts which are onerous at inception cannot be grouped with contracts which are profitable at inception. Contracts
which ate issued more than one year apart ate not permitted to be included within the same group, although thete is
some relief from this requirement for business in-force at the date of transiton under the transitional arrangements.

The standard introduces three measurement approaches, of which two, the general model and the premium allocation
approach, are applicable to the Company’s business. The main features of these models are the measurement of an
insurance contract as the present value of expected future cash flows including acquisition costs, plus an explicit risk
adjustment, remeasured at each reporting period using current assumptions, and a contractual service margin (‘CSM).

The risk adjustment represents the compensation the Company requires for bearing the uncertainty about the amount
and timing of cash flows that arise from non-financial risk as the obligations under the insurance contract are fulfilled.

The CSM teptesents the uneatned profit of a group of insurance contracts and is recognised in profit ot loss as the
insurance service is provided to the customer using coverage units. Coverage units are a measurement of the quantum
of service provided across the life of the contract and are used to measure the service provided in the reporting petiod
and release a corresponding amount of profit to the profit or loss. If a group of contracts becomes loss-making after
inception the loss is recognised immediately in the profit or loss. This treatment of profits and losses in respect of
services is broadly consistent with the principles of IFRS 15 and TAS 37 applicable to other industries.

Under the general model the CSM is adjusted for non-economic assumption changes relating to future petiods.
IFRS 17 requires the standard to be applied retrospectively. Where this is assessed as impracticable the standard allows
the application of a simplified tetrospective approach or 2 fair value approach to determine the contractual service
margin. The measutement principles set out in IFRS 17 will significantly change the way in which the Company
measutes its insurance contracts and associated reinsurance contracts.

These changes will impact the pattern in which profit emerges when compared to IFRS 4 and add complexity to
valuation processes, data requirements and assumption setting. The introduction of IFRS 17 will simplify the
presentation of the statement of financial position. It requires the presentation of groups of insurance (or reinsurance)
contracts that ate in an asset position separately from those in a liability position. The presentation of the profit or loss
will change mote significantly with IFRS 17 setting out how components of the profitability of contracts ate
disaggregated into an insurance service result and insurance finance income/expenses. IFRS 17 also requires extensive
disclosutes on the amounts recognized from insurance contracts and the nature and extent of risks arising from them.
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2. Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) (continued)
2.2 Amendment to standards and interpretations issued but not yet effective (continued)
Premium allocation approach:

The Premium allocation approach is an optional simplified measurement model in IFRS 17 that is available for
insurance and reinsurance contracts that meet the eligibility criteria.

® The Company expects that it will apply the PAA to all contracts because the standard has given options to the
entities to simplify theit contract measutement approach by applying Premium Allocation Approach for their
insurance contract whete the coverage period is 12 months or less or if applying the simplified approach will give
results not matetially different from the results produced by applying general measurement model. This option will
reduce the complexities, time and cost in applying IFRS 17 for the group.

Risk-attaching reinsurance contracts: The Company reasonably expects that the resulting measurement of the asset for
remaining coverage would not differ materially from the result of applying the accounting policies described above.

Insurance acquisition cash flows atise from the activities of selling, underwriting and starting a group of contracts that
are directly attributable to the portfolio of contracts to which the group belongs.

Under IFRS 17, only insurance acquisition cash flows that arise before the recognition of the related insurance contracts
are recognised as separate assets and tested for recoverability, whereas other insurance acquisition cash flows are
included in the estimates of the present value of future cash flows as part of the measurement of the related insurance
contracts.

Impact assessment — Non-Life Insurance

Although the PAA is similar to the Company’s cutrent accounting treatment when measuring liabilities for remaining
coverage, the following changes are expected in the accounting for Non-life contracts.

Changes from IFRS 4 Impact on equity on
transition to IFRS 17

Under IFRS 17, the Company will discount the future cash flows when measuring | Increase
liabilities for incurred claimns, unless they are expected to occut in one year or

less from the date on which the claims are incurred. The Company does not
currently discount such future cash flows.

IFRS 17 tequites the fulfilment cash flows to include a risk adjustment for non- | Decrease
financial risk. This is not explicitly allowed for currently.
The Company’s accounting policy under IFRS 17 to expense eligible insurance | Decrease
acquisition cash flows when they are incurred differs from the current practice
under which these amounts are recognized separately as deferred acquisition costs.

The Company implementation project continued through 2022 with a focus on finalizing methodologies and
developing the operational capabilities requited to implement the standard including data, systems and business
ptocesses. The cutrent focus is on embedding the operational capabilities and determining the transition statement of
financial position and comparatives required for 2023 reporting.

Since the implementation project is currently ongoing, management believes that it is impractical to determine the
amount of the effect of IFRS 17 in the current petiod.
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2. Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) (continued)
2.2 Amendment to standards and interpretations issued but not yet effective (continued)

Other Standards and amendments that are not yet effective and have not been adopted early by the Company
include:

e (lassification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current (Amendments to IAS 1)

¢ Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2)

¢ Deferred Tax Related to Assets and Liabilities Arising from a Single Transaction (Amendments

to 1AS 12)
® Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendments to IAS 1)
® Definition of Accounting Estimates (Amendments to IAS 8)

These standards, amendments and interpretations are not expected to have a significant impact on the financial
statemnents in the period of initial application and therefore no disclosures have been made.

3. Significant accounting policies

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are summatized below. These
policies have been consistently applied to each of the years presented.

31 Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been ptepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and
comply with applicable requitements of the Federal Law No. (6) of 2007 (as amended), Concerning the Establishment
of the Insurance Authority & Otrganization of the Insurance Operations, the Federal Law No. (32) of 2021 Concerning
the Commercial Companies and Insurance Authority Board Decision No. (25) of 2014 Pertinent to Financial
Regulations for Insurance Companies, Insurance Authority Board Decision No. (23) of 2019 Concerning Instruction
Organizing Reinsurance Operations.

3.2 Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for investment properties and
financial assets that have been carried at fair value, as explained in the accounting policies below.

33 Insurance contracts
3.3.1  Definition, recognition and measurenient

The Company issues contracts that transfer insurance risk. Insurance contracts are those contracts that transfer
significant insurance risk.

Insurance contracts ate classified into two main categoties, depending on the duration of risk and whether or not
the terms and conditions are fixed.

3.3.2  Short-term insurance contracts
These contracts ate casualty, property and short-duration life insurance contracts.

Casualty insurance contracts protect the Company’s customers against the risk of causing harm to third patties as
a result of their legitimate activities. Damages covered include both contractual and non-contractual events.

Property insurance contracts mainly compensate the Company’s customers for damage suffered to their properties
or for the value of property lost. Customers who undertake commetcial activities on their premises could also
teceive compensation for the loss of earnings caused by the inability to use the insured properties in their business
activities (business interruption cover).
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3 Significant accounting policies (continued)
33 Insurance contracts (continued)

3.3.2  Short-term insurance comtracts (continued)

Short-duration life insurance contracts indemnifies the Company’s customers from the consequences of events
that would affect on the ability of the customer or customer’s dependents to maintain their cutrent level of income.
Guaranteed benefits paid on occurrence of the specified insurance event are either fixed or linked to the extent of
the economic loss suffered by the policyholder. There are no matutity or surrender benefits.

For all these insurance contracts, ptemiums are recognised as revenue (earned premiums) on time-proportion basis
wherein revenue from an insurance contract is recognised over the effective period of the policy with the exception
of marine, where the uneatned premium resetve (UPR) is recognised as fixed propottion of the written premiums
and for engineering where UPR is calculated on uniform risk basis. The portion of premium received on in-force
contracts that relates to unexpired risks at the end of the reporting petiod is reported as the uneamed premium
liability.

Claims and loss adjustment expenses are charged to profit or loss as incurred based on the estimated liability for
compensation owed to contract holders or third parties damaged by the contract holders. They include direct claims
settlement costs and arise from events that have occurred up to the reporting date even if even they have not yet
been reported to the Company.

The Company does not discount its liabilities for unpaid claims. Liabilities for unpaid claims are estimated using
the input of assessments for individual cases reported to the Company and statistical analyses for the claims incutred
but not reported, and to estimate the expected ultimate cost of more complex claims that may be affected by
external factots (such as court decisions).

Unallocated loss adjustment expense reserves cotrespond to the provision representing future claim expenses and
related handling costs that are not case specific. It represents all other expenses and costs that are related to the
adjudication of claims but cannot be assigned to a specific claim and is calculated based on recommendation of
Company’s external actuarial valuation report.

3.3.3  Remsurance contracts

Contracts entered into by the Company with reinsurers under which the Company is compensated for losses on
one ot mote contracts issued by the Company and that meet the classification requirements for insurance contracts
are classified as reinsurance contracts. Contracts that do not meet these classification requirements ate classified as
financial assets. Insurance contracts entered into by the Company under which the contract holder is another
insurer ate included with insurance contracts. The benefits to which the Company is entitled under its reinsurance
contracts held are recognised as reinsurance contract assets. These assets consist of short-term balances due from
reinsurers, as well as longer term receivables that are dependent on the expected claims and benefits arising under
the related reinsured insurance contracts. Amounts recoverable from or due to reinsurers are measured consistently
with the amounts associated with the reinsured insurance contracts and in accordance with the terms of each
reinsurance contract. Reinsurance liabilities are ptimarily premiums payable for reinsurance contracts and are
recognised as an expense when due. The Company assesses its reinsurance contract assets for impairment on a
regular basis. The Company gathers the objective evidence that a reinsurance asset is impaired using the same
process adopted for financial assets held at amortised cost. The impairment loss is also calculated following the
same method used for these financial assets.

3.34  Insurance contract liabilities

Insurance contract liabilities towatds outstanding claims ate made for all claims intimated to the Company and still
unpaid at the end of the repotting petiod, in addition for claims incurred but not reported.

The reinsurers’ portion of the above outstanding claims and unearned premium is classified as reinsurance
contract assets in the financial statements.
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued)
3.3 Insurance contracts (continued)

3.35  Salvage and subrogation reimbursements

Estimates of salvage and subrogation reimbursements ate considered as an allowance in the measurement of the
insurance liability for claims.

3.3.6  Liability adeqnacy test

At the end of each reporting period, the Company assesses whether its recognised insurance liabilities are adequate
using current estimates of future cash flows under its insurance contracts. If that assessment shows that the carrying
amount of its insurance liabilities is inadequate in the light of estimated future cash flows, the entire deficiency is
immediately recognised in income and an unexpired risk provision is created.

3.3.7  Receivables and payables related to insnrance contracts
Receivables and payables are recognised when due. These include amounts due to and from agents, brokers and
insurance contract holders. The Company gathers the objective evidence that an insurance receivable is impaired
using the same process adopted for financial assets carried at amortized cost. The impairment loss is also calculated
under the same method used for these financial assets.

3.3.8  Conunission earned and incurred

Commissions and other acquisition costs that are related to securing new contracts and renewing existing contracts
are charged to profit or loss when incurred. The Company recognise commissions received from reinsurance
premium ceded as commission income in the petiod in which premium was ceded to the reinsurers.

3.4 Revenue recognition

3.4.1  Insurance contract income

Revenue from insurance contracts is measuted under revenue recognition criteria stated under insurance contracts
in these financial statements (Note 3.3).

34.2  Inferest income

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by teference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to the asset’s net carrying amount.

34.3  Dividend income

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the Company’s rights to receive payment have been
established.

344  Remtal income

Rental income from investment property which are leased under operating leases are recognised on a straight-line basis
over the term of the relevant lease.

3.5 General and administrative expenses

85% of general and administrative expenses for the year are allocated to insurance depattments in proportion to each
department’s share of written premium.
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued)
3.6 Foreign currencies

The financial statements of the Company are presented in the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the Company operates (its functional currency). For the purpose of the financial statements, the results and
financial position of the Company are expressed in Arab Emirates Dithams (“AED”), which is the functional
currency of the Company and the presentation currency for the financial statements.

In preparing the financial statements of the Company, transactions in currencies other than the Company’s
functional currency (foreign cutrencies) are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetaty
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences are recognized in statement of income in the year in which they arise.
3.7 Employee benefits
3.7.1  Defined contribution plan

U.A.E. national employees of the Company are members of the Government-managed retitement pension and
social security benefit scheme putsuant to U.A.E. labour law no. 7 of 1999. The Company is required to contribute
12.5% of the “contribution calculation salaty” of payroll costs to the retitement benefit scheme to fund the benefits.
The employees and the Govetnment contribute 5% and 2.5% of the “contribution calculation salary” respectively,
to the scheme. The only obligation of the Company with respect to the retitement pension and social security
scheme is to make the specified contributions. The contributions are charged to statement of income.

3.7.2  Annual leave and leave passage

An accrual is made for the estimated liability for employees' entitlement to annual leave and leave passage as a tesult
of services rendered by eligible employees up to the end of the year.

3.7.3  Provision for employees’ end of service indemmni
0y

Ptovision is also made for the full amount of end of setvice indemnity due to non-U.A.E. national employees in
accordance with the U.A.E. Labour Law and is based on cuttrent remuneration and their period of setvice at the
end of the reporting period. The acctual relating to annual leave and leave passage is disclosed as a current liability,
while the provision relating to end of setvice indemnity is disclosed as a non-current Liability.

3.8 Property and equipment

Property and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Depreciation is charged so as to write off the cost of assets over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line
method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at each year end, with
the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit ot loss.

The useful lives considered in the calculation of depreciation for all the assets are 4 - 5 years, Right-of-use assets
are depreciated over the lease term.,
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued)
3.9 Intangible assets

Intangible assets are reported at cost less accumulated amortisation and identified impairment losses, if any.
Amortisation is chatged on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and
amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each annual reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis. The useful lives considered in the calculation of amortisation
is 4 years.

3.10 Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation including properties under
construction for such purposes. Investment ptoperties ate measured initially at cost, including transaction costs.
Cost includes the cost of replacing patt of an existing investment property at the time that cost is incurred if the
recognition criteria are met; and excludes the cost of day to day setvicing of an investment property. Subsequent
to initial recognition, investment propetties are stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions at the reporting
date. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment propetties are included in the statement
of income in the petiod in which they arise.

Investment propetties are derecognised when either they have been disposed of or when the investment property
is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from its disposal. Any gains or
losses on the retitement or disposal of an investment property are recognised in the statement of income in the
period of retirement or disposal.

Fair value is determined by open market values based on valuations performed by external independent consultants.
311  Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting petiod, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of their tangible and intangible
assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in otder to determine the extent of the impairment
loss (if any). Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Company
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be identified, cotporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating
units, or otherwise they ate allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified. Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and
value in use.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (ot cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
catrying amount of the asset (cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in the statement of income, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in
which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation dectrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the catrying amount of the asset (cash-generating unit) is increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (cash-
generating unit) in ptrior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in the statement of
income, unless the relevant asset is cartied at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss
is treated as a revaluation inctrease.
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

312 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made
of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation. Where a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its catrying
amount is the present value of those cash flows.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third
patty, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is vittually certain that reimbursement will be received and the
amount of the receivable can be measuted reliably.

313  Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the
cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for theit intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in statement of income in the period in which they are incutred.

314  lLeases
3.14.1 The Company as a Lessee

The Company considers whether a contract is, or contains a lease. A lease is defined as ‘a contract or patt of a
contract, that conveys the right-to-use an asset (the undetlying asset) for a period of time in exchange for
consideration’. To apply this definition, the Company assesses whether the contract meets three key evaluations
which are whether:

- The contract contains an identified asset, which is either explicitly identified in the contract or implicitly
specified by being identified at the time the asset is made available to the Company.

- The Company has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the identified
asset throughout the petiod of use, consideting its rights within the defined scope of the contract.

- The Company has the right to direct the use of the identified asset throughout the period of use. The
Company assesses whether it has the tight to direct ‘how and for what purpose’ the asset is used throughout the
petiod of use.

Measurement and recognition of leases as a lessee

At lease commencement date, the Company recognises a right of use asset and 2 lease liability on the statement of
financial position. The right of use asset is measured at cost, which is made up of the initial measurement of the
lease liability, any ditect costs incurred by the Company, an estimate of any costs to dismantle and remove the asset
at the end of the lease, and any lease payments made in advance of the lease commencement date (net of any
incentives received).
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

3.14  Leases (continued)

3.14.1 The Company as a Lessee (continued)

Measurement and recognition of leases as a lessee (continued)

The Company depreciates the right of use assets on a straight-line basis from the lease commencement date to the
earlier of the end of the useful life of the right of use asset or the end of the lease term. The Company also assesses
the right of use asset for impairment when such indicators exist. At the commencement date, the Company
measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments unpaid at that date, discounted using the
interest rate implicit in the lease if that rate is readily available or the Company’s incremental borrowing rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability ate made up of the fixed payments (including in
substance fixed), vatiable payments based on an index or rate, amounts expected to be payable under a tesidual
value guarantee and payments atising from options reasonably certain to be exetcised.

Subsequent to initial measurement, the liability will be reduced for payments made and incteased for interest. It is
remeasured to reflect any reassessment or modification, or if there are changes in fixed payments.

When the lease liability is remeasured, the cottesponding adjustment is reflected in the right of-use asset, or
statement of income if the right of use asset is already reduced to zero.

The Company has elected to account for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets using the practical
expedients. Instead of recognizing a right-of-use asset and lease liability, the payments in relation to these are
recognised as an expense in statement of income on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

On the statement of financial position, right-of-use assets have been included in property, plant and equipment
and lease liabilities have been included in as a separate line item as lease liabilities.

3.14.2 The Company as a Lessor

The Company’s accounting policy under IFRS 16 has not changed from the comparative period. As alessor the
Company classifies its leases as either operating or finance leases. A lease is classified as a finance lease if it
transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownetship of the undetlying asset and classified as
an operating lease if it does not.

3.15 Financial instruments

All financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date whete the putchase or sale of a financial asset
is under a contract whose terms require delivery of the financial asset within the timeframe established by the
market concetned, and are initially measured at fair value, plus transaction costs, except for those financial assets
classified as at fair value through profit or loss (FVIPL). Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of financial assets classified as at FVTPL ate recognised immediately in statement of income.
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued)
3.15  Financial instruments (continued)

All recognised financial assets that are within the scope of IFRS 9 atre required to be subsequently measured at
amortised cost or fair value on the basis of the Company’s business model for managing the financial assets and
the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets. Specifically:

@ debt instruments that are held within a business model whose objective is to collect the contractual
cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding (SPPI), are subsequently measured at amortised cost;

(i) debt instruments that are held within a business model whose objective is both to collect the
conttactual cash flows and to sell the debt instruments, and that have contractual cash flows that are
SPPI, are subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI);

(ii1) all other debt instruments (e.g. debt insttuments managed on a fair value basis, or held for sale) and
equity investments are subsequently measured at FVIPL. However, the Company may make the
following irrevocable election/designation at initial recognition of a financial asset on an asset-by-
asset basis:

a. the Company may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair value of an equity
investment that is neither held for trading nor contingent consideration recognised by an
acquirer in a business combination to which IFRS 3 applies, in other comprehensive income
(OCI); and

b. the Company may irrevocably designate a debt instrument that meets the amortised cost or
FVOCI criteria as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an
accounting mismatch (referred to as the fair value option).

Cash and bank and insurance and other receivables

Cash and bank and insurance and other receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any impairment. Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate, except for
short- term receivables when the recognition of interest would be immaterial.

The effective interest rate (EIR) is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash flows of the financial
instrument through the expected life of the financial instrument or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability. The future cash flows are estimated taking into
account all the contractual terms of the instrument.

The calculation of the EIR includes all fees and points paid ot received between parties to the contract that are
incremental and directly atttibutable to the specific lending arrangement, transaction costs, and all other premiums
or discounts. For financial assets at FVTPL transaction costs ate recognised in profit or loss at initial recognition.

Equity instruments at FVOCI

Investments in equity instruments/funds at FVOCI are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs.
Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from changes in fair value recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the camulative changes in fair value reserve. The cumulative
gain or loss will not be reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the investments in equity instruments/funds,
but treclassified to retained earnings. The Company has designated all investments in equity instruments that are
not held for trading as FVOCI.

Dividends on these investments in equity instrtuments ate recognised in profit or loss when the Company’s right
to receive the dividends is established, unless the dividends cleatly represent a recovety of patt of the cost of the
investment. Other net gains and losses are recognized in OCI and are never reclassified to profit or loss.
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

3,15  Financial instruments (continued)
Debt instruments at amortised cost or at FVOCI

The Company assesses the classification and measurement of a financial asset based on the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the asset and the Company’s business model for managing the asset.

~ For an asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or at FVOCI, its contractual terms should give tise
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding (SPPI).

At initial recognition of a financial asset, the Company determines whether newly recognised financial assets are
part of an existing business model or whether they reflect the commencement of a new business model. The
Company reassess its business models each reporting petiod to determine whether the business models have
changed since the preceding period. For the current and prior reporting period the Company has not identified a
change in its business models. When a debt insttument measured at FVOCI is derecognised, the cumulative
gain/loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from equity to profit or loss. Debt instruments that are
subsequently measured at amortised cost or at FVOCI ate subject to impairment.

Financial assets at FVIPL

Financial assets at FVIPL are:
(i)  assets with contractual cash flows that are not SPPI; or/and
(i) assets that are held in a business model other than held to collect contractual cash flows or held
to collect and sell; or
(iii) assets designated at FVIPL using the fair value option.

These assets are measured at fair value, with any gains/losses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or
loss.

Fair value option: A financial instrument with a reliably measurable fait value can be designated as FVTPL (the
fair value option) on its initial tecognition even if the financial instrument was not acquired or incutred principally
for the purpose of selling or repurchasing. The fair value option can be used for financial assets if it eliminates ot
significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise from measuring
assets or liabilities, ot recognizing related gains and losses on a different basis (an “accounting mismatch™).

Reclassifications

If the business model undet which the Company holds financial assets changes, the financial assets affected are
reclassified. The classification and measurement requirements related to the new category apply prospectively
from the first day of the first repotting period following the change in business model that results in reclassifying
the Company’s financial assets. During the curtent financial year and previous accounting period, there was no
change in the business model under which the Company holds financial assets and therefore no reclassifications
wete made.
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3 Significant accounting policies (continued)
3.15  Financial instruments (continued)
Impairment

IFRS 9 replaces the ‘incurred loss’ model in IAS 39 with an expected credit loss model (ECLs). The Company
tecognises loss allowances for expected credit losses on bank balances including statutory and fixed deposits and
insurance and other receivables that are not measured at FVIPL.

No impaitment loss is recognised on equity investments.

With the exception of putchased or otiginated credit impaired (POCI) financial assets (which are considered
separately below), ECLs ate required to be measured through 2 loss allowance at an amount equal to:
e 12-month ECL, i.e. lifeime ECL that result from those default events on the financial instrument
that are possible within 12 months after the teporting date, (referred to as Stage 1); or
e  full lifetime ECL, i.. lifetime ECL that result from all possible default events over the life of the
financial instrument, (referred to as Stage 2 and Stage 3).
A loss allowance for full lifetime ECL is required for a financial instrument if the credit risk on that financial
instrament has increased significantly since initial trecognition. For all other financial instruments, ECLs are
measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL.

The Company has elected to measure loss allowances for bank balances including statutory and fixed deposits,
insurance and other receivables at an amount equal to life ime ECLs.

Loss allowance for financial investments measured at amortised costs are deducted from gross catrying amount of
assets.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
and when estimating ECLs, the Company considets reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and
available without undue costs or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis,
based on Company’s historical experience and informed credit assessment and including forward-looking
information.

For certain categories of financial assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually are, in addition, assessed
for impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of teceivables could include
the Company’s past experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed payments in the
pottfolio as well as observable changes in national or local economic conditions that correlate with default on
receivables.

Impairment losses related to bank balances including statutory and fixed deposits and insurance and other
receivables are presented in the statement of income.

The Company considers a debt security to have low credit risk when its credit risk rating is equivalent to the globally
understood definition of the grade of the investment.
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued)
3.15  Financial instruments (continued)

Measurement of ECL

The Company considers broader range of information when assessing the credit risk, and measuring expected credit
losses, including past events, current conditions, reasonable and supportable forecasts that affect the expected
collectability of the future cash flows of the instrument. In applying this forwatd looking approach, a distinction is
made between:

e Financial instruments that have not detetiorated significantly in credit quality since initial recognition ot
that have low credit risk. (Stage 1); and

® Financial instruments that have deteriorated significantly in credit quality since initial recognition and
whose credit risk is not low. (Stage 2)

Stage 3 would cover financial assets that have objective evidence of impairment at the reporting date. The Company
considers a debt security to have low credit risk when their credit risk rating is equivalent to the globally understood
definidon of “investment grade”.

12-month expected ctedit loss are recognized for the first category (Stage 1) while “life time expected credit losses”
are recognized for the second category (Stage 2). Measurement of the expected credit losses is determined by a
probability - weighted estimate of credit losses over the expected life of the financial instrument.

The Company makes use of a simplified approach in accounting for insurance receivables and for other receivables
recotds life time expected credit loss. These are expected shortfalls in the contractual cashflows, considering the
potential for default at any point during the life of a financial instrument. In calculating, the Company uses its
historical experience, external indicators and forward looking information to calculate the expected credit losses
using a provision matrix.

The Company assesses impairment of insurance receivables on a collective basis as they possess shated credit riks
characteristics, they have been grouped based on the days past due.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is ‘ctedit-impaited’ when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred. At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether
financial assets carried at amortized costs are credit impaired.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Company derecognizes a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the tisks and rewards of ownership of the asset
to another entity. If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company recognizes its retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company continues to recognize the financial asset and also
recognizes a collateralized borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortized cost or measured at FVTPL, the difference between
the asset’s cartying amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is recognised in statement of
income.

On derecognition of a financial asset that is classified as FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the cumulative changes in fair value of securities reserve is not reclassified to statement of income,
but is reclassified to retained earnings.
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued)
3.15  Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments ate classified as either financial liabilities ot as equity in accordance with the substance
of the contractual arrangement.

Eguity instrimients

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.

Financial fiabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as ‘other financial liabilides’.

Other financial habilities

Insurance and other payables and bank overdrafts are classified as ‘other financial liabilities” and ate initially
measured at fair value, net of transaction costs. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amottised
cost using the effective interest method, with interest expense recognised on an effective yield basis except for
short term payable when the recognition of interest would be immaterial.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments through the expected life of the financial liability, ot, whete appropriate, a shorter period to
the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or they expire.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shateholdets is recognised as a liability in the Company’s financial
statements in the period in which the dividend is approved by the Company’s shareholders.

3.16 Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date, tegardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company
takes into account the charactetistics of the asset or liability if market participants would take those characteristics
into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/ox
disclosure purposes in these financial statements is determined on such basis.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the se of

unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized
with in fair value hierarchy, based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole.
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3 Significant accounting policies (continued)
316  Fair value measurement (continued)
In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorized into Level 1,2 or 3 based on

the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements ate observable and the significance of the inputs to
the fair value measurements in its entitety, which are described as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
entity can access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset
ot liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the assets or liability.

4. Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the Company’s accounting policies, which are described in Note 3 to these financial statements,
management is required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical expetience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and undetlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both cutrent and future periods.

41 Ciitical accounting judgements

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations (see 4.2 below), that management
has made in the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on
the amounts recognized in the financial statements.

4.1.1  Classification of investments

Management decides on acquisition of an investment whether it should be classified as FVTPL or FVOCI. The
Company classifies investments at FVTPL if they are acquired primatily for the purpose of making a short-term
profit by the dealers.

Equity instruments are classified as financial assets measured at FVOCI when they are considered by management
to be strategic equity investments that ate not held to benefit from changes in their fair value and are not held for
trading.

Management is satisfied that the Company’s investments in secutities are appropriately classified.
age pany pprop y

4.1.2  Classification of properties

In the process of classifying properties, management has made vatious judgments. Judgments are needed to
determine whether a property qualifies as an investment property, property and equipment, property undet
development and/or property held for sale. Management develops critetia so that it can exercise that judgment
consistently in accordance with the definitions of investment property, property and equipment, property under
development and propetty held fot sale. In making its judgment, management has considered the detailed critetia
and related guidance set out in IAS 2 — Inventories, IAS 16 — Property, Plant and Equipment, and TAS 40 —
Investment Property, with regards to the intended use of the property.
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4, Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty {(continued)

4.1 Critical accounting judgements (continued)
4.1.3  Business mode! assessment

Classification and measurement of financial assets depends on the results of the SPPI and the business model test
{please see financial assets sections of Note 3.15). The Company determines the business model at a level that
teflects how Company’s financial assets are managed togethet to achieve a particular business objective. This
assessment includes judgement reflecting all relevant evidence including how the performance of the assets is
evaluated and their performance measured, the risks that affect the performance of the assets and how these are
managed and how the managers of the assets ate compensated. The Company monitors financial assets measured
at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income that are derecognised prior to their maturity
to understand the reason for their disposal and whether the reasons are consistent with the objective of the business
for which the asset was held. Monitoting is part of the Company’s continuous assessment of whether the business
model for which the remaining financial assets are held continues to be appropriate and if it is not appropriate
whether there has been a change in business model and so a prospective change to the classification of those assets.
No such changes were required during the years presented.

4.2 Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following ate the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key soutces of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

4.2.1  The nitimate liability arising from claims made under insurance contracts

The estimation of ultimate liability arising from the claims made under insurance contracts is the Company’s most
critical accounting estimate. There are sources of uncertainty that need to be considered in the estimate of the
liability that the Company will eventually pay for such claims. Estimates have to be made both for the expected
ultimate cost of claims reported and for the expected ultimate cost of claims incurred but not repotted (“IBNR”)
at the end of each reporting period. Liabilities for unpaid reported claims are estimated using the input of
assessments for individual cases reported to the Company and management estimates based on external actuarial
assessment, taking into account the historical data of the claims reported and settlement pattern. Such method takes
into account the best estimates of the future contractual cash flows estimated based on the historical data. At the
end of each reporting period, prior year claims estimates are reassessed for adequacy and changes are made to the
pfOVlSlDﬂ.

4.2.2  Impairment of insurance receivables

The Company reviews its insurance receivables on a regular basis to assess whether an expected credit loss provision
should be tecorded in the statement of income. In particular, judgement by management is required in the estimation
of the amount and timing of future cashflows when determining the level of provisions required. Such estimates are
necessarily based on assumptions about the probability of default and probable losses in the event of default, the value
of the undetlying security, and realization cost.

Before accepting any new customet, the Company assesses the potential customers’ credit quality and defines credit
limits by customet.

The Company always measutes the loss allowance for receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. The expected
credit losses on insurance receivables are estimated using a provision matrix by reference to past default experience of
the debtor and an analysis of the debtor’s current financial position, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors,
general economic conditions of the industry in which the debtors operate and an assessment of both the current as well
as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date. There has been no change in the estimation techniques or
significant assumptions made during the current reporting year.
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4. Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

4.2 Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
4.23  Liability adequacy test

At the end of each reporting period, liability adequacy tests ate petformed to ensute the adequacy of insutance
contract liabilities. The Company makes use of the best estimates of future contractual cash flows and claims
handling and administration expenses, as well as investment income from the assets backing such liabilities in
evaluating the adequacy of the liability. Any deficiency is immediately charged to the profit or loss.

4.24 Valnation of unguoted equity instruments

Valuation of unquoted equity investments is done by independent external valuer normally based on recent market
transactions on an arm’s length basis, fair value of another instrument that is substantially the same, or other
valuation models. In the absence of an active market for these investments or any recent transactions that could
provide evidence of the current fair value, management estimates the fair value of these instruments using net assets
valuation method or other valuation models.

4.2.5  Depreciation of property and equipment

The cost of property and equipment is depteciated over the estimated useful life, which is based on expected usage of
the asset, expected physical wear and tear, the repair and maintenance program and technological obsolescence arising
from changes and the residual value. Management has not considered any residual value as it is deemed immaterial.

4.2.6  Awortization of intangible assets

The period of amortisation of the intangible assets is determined based on the pattern in which the asset’s futute
economic benefits are expected to be consumed by the Company and technological obsolescence. Management has
concluded that no impairment of intangible assets is required based on impairment test performed by the Company as
of the reporting date.

4.2.7 Revaluation of investment properties

The investment propetties ate catried at fair value, with changes in the fair value being recognized in the statement of
income. The management engaged independent valuation specialists to assess fair value during the year. The fair value
of plots of land was determined based on an acceptable approach that reflects recent transactions prices for similar
properties. The fair value of buildings was determined using income approach. In estimating the fair value of the
propetties, the highest and best use of the properties is their current use.

31



(47

‘puEsnomy gg (JHV JO EI] [ENUUE YIM 32GFO TBqn(] IO IDERUOD 58] MIU PaUTEIqO PUe
‘Ajoanoadsas ‘puEsnoyl Gg pUE PUBSNO (7] (JHV JO 9S89] [ENUUE AL YdUEIq Uewly pPUe youeiq reqn(] 70§ 198NUO0D 95E3] 1 paf=oued Auedwion) sip “Tead Jusmms o Sunm(y

0L0°29€T 06L€£0T 082°8Z¢ 5

619V6ZT 0Z9°LS0‘T 666°9€T -

POLYIL'S Y65 YT STITS6'E SLY0TLT

(810902) (810%902) - -

86Z°148 S0S1ZL CELGHT 5

PI6QHF L LO1°926°T ZEET08'E CLYOTLT

(119%¢h) (119°¢Ep) - =

Z08'S01°T 906°508 968°66¢ -

€TLBLLD 218665 T 9¢H'708°C SLY 0L Y

£18°80+°6 Y1z 66b"C YTI'681Y SLY0TLT

(8¥8°6LS) (818°5.LS) - -

LL9'ELT S91SI1 71688 -

¥86°018°6 L68°656°C ZI9°0€1Y SLY0TLT

(658°658) (658°658) % ™

8LSYET T £+0°996 GES°89¢ -

GOZ'9CH 6 £1.°¢S8'e LLO798°C CLYOTLT

agv aav azav agv

101, Sutpping-s1ssse  juamdmba sjuauraaoxdur
asn-yo-1y3ry 20hjo pue 30150 pue

IMITINg uonexoda(J

120T Foqui=o(J 1€ 3V

CC0T 12quiad9( 1€ IV
junoure sutdirer)

TTOT PquIa09( 1€ 3V
sresodstp 01 pajgey
1eaf a1 103 2817

120¢ 32quade( 1€ 1V
spesodsp 01 Sunepy
¥eak 2yl 30 98rey)

020¢ 2quads( 1€V
uonenardep palemunsoy

20T 319quis03( 1€ IV
yeak a1 Supnp spesodsiq
F824 211 SuLNp suonppy

120 72quada(y 1¢
ea£ otp Supmp sesodsiy
Teaf o3 Sunnp suonippy

020z 3=2que2R(g 1¢ 3V
150D

suawrdmba pue furadosg S

ZZ0T I2qUID3(] 1€ PAPUL J2a4 341 10,
(panunUo2) S1UWIIEIS [EIOULUY SU} 03 SAION]

SIUDWIIIEIS [EIOULUT]
*0's"d Auedwon ssuemsuy yelreyg



Sharjah Insurance Company P.S.C.
Financial statements

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

6. Intangible assets
Computer software
AED
Cost
At 31 December 2020 833,617
Additions duting the year 26,679
At 31 December 2021 860,296
Additions during the year 7,361
At 31 December 2022 867,657
Accumulated amortization
At 31 December 2020 601,929
Charge for the year 78,114
At 31 December 2021 680,043
Charge for the year 114,205
At 31 December 2022 794,248
Carrying amount
At 31 December 2022 73,409
At 31 December 2021 180,253
7. Investment properties
2022 2021
AED AED
Fair value at the beginning of the yeat 51,949,400 53,450,000
Changes in fait value 1,154,955 (1,500,600)
Fair value at the end of the year 53,104,355 51,949,400

The fair value of the Company’s investment properties has been arrived at on the basis of valuations catried by
independent external valuers who have appropriate market experience in the valuation of propetties in the United
Arab Emirates.

The fair value was determined based on the acceptable approach that teflects recent transactions prices for similar
propetties, and income approach for othet properties. In estimating the fair value of the propetties, the highest and
best use of the properties is their cutrent use.

Investment properties include properties mortgaged to Ministry of Economy and Commerce, U.A.E. amounting to
AED 24.9 million (2021: AED 21.9 million) in accordance with the requirements of U.A.E. Federal Law No. 6 of
2007, on Insurance Companies register of the Central Bank of the U.A.E. (“CBUAE”").

The Company’s investment properties are classified as Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy as at 31 December 2022
(2021: Level 3).
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7. Investment properties (continued)

The property rental income earned by the Company from its investment properties and the direct operating expenses

related to the investment properties are as follows:

2022 2021
AED AED
Rental income 2,498,080 2,446,499
Direct operating expenses (24,274) (8,185)
Net income from investment ptoperties (Note 19) 2,473,806 2,438,314
Details of the Company’s investment propetties and their fair values ate as follows:
2022 2021
AED AED
Plots of land located in Sharjah, U.AE 5,980,250 5,980,000
Shops located in Sharjah, UAE 41,872,500 41,175,000
Villas located in Shatjah, UA.E 2,545,605 2,456,900
Building located in Shatjah, U.A.E. 2,706,000 2,337,500
53,104,355 51,949,400
8. Financial investments
The Company’s financial investments at the end of reporting period are detailed below:
8.1 Financial investments designated at FVOCI
2022 2021
AED AED
Quoted securities 32,285,645 47,599,464
Unquoted securities 4,701,164 3,085,707
36,986,809 50,685,171
The geographical classification of the investments is as follows:
2022 2021
AED AED
Within U.A.E. 15,100,516 21,523,489
In other GCC countties 21,886,293 29,161,682
36,986,809 50,685,171

The electronic custody of investments designated at FVOCI with fair value AED Nil (2021: AED 6.11 million) are
transferred to the bank’s appointed broker as security against credit facility granted to the Company (Note 22).
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8. Financial investments (continued)

8.2 Financial investments at FVIPL

Quoted secutities
Unquoted securities

The geographical classification of the investments is as follows:

Within U.A.E.
Other GCC countties

2022 2021

AED AED
133,910,440 108,360,339
345,289 354,063
134,255,729 108,714,402

2022 2021

AED AED
92,744,231 95,857,509
41,511,498 12,856,893
134,255,729 108,714,402

The electronic custody of investments designated at FVIPL with fair value AED 42.4 million (31 December 2021:
AED 40.69 million) ate transfetred to the bank’s appointed broker as secutity against credit facility granted to the
Company (Note 22).

The movements in financial investments are as follows:

At FVOCI At FVTPL

2022 2021 2022 2021

AED AED AED AED
At 1 January 50,685,171 86,373,730 108,714,402 10,783,755
Purchased during the year 108,477 - 118,772,956 124,457,323
Disposals during the year (9,910,586) (61,284,101) (95,243,123) (38,555,928)
Change in fair value (3,896,253) 25,595,542 2,011,494 12,029,252
At 31 December 36,986,809 50,685,171 134,255,729 108,714,402

Disclosure as required by the citcular No. 411/2019 dated 7 July 2019: At reporting date, the Company does not
have any investment in securities with Abraaj Group.

9. Statutory deposit

In accordance with the requirements of Federal Law No. 6 of 2007, on Insutance Companies register of the Centtal
Bank of the UA.E. (“CBUAE”) (formerly Insurance Authority of U.A.E.), the Company maintains a bank deposit
of AED 5,000,000 (31 December 2021: AED 5,000,000) as a statutory deposit. In addition to the statutory deposit,
there are investment properties with a fair value amounting to AED 24.9 million (2021: AED 21.9 million)
mortgaged to the Ministry of Economy and Commerce (Note 7).
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10. Insurance contract liabilities and reinsurance contract assets
2022 2021
AED AED

Gross
Insurance contract liabilities
Claims reported unsettled 16,198,159 24,841,463
Unallocated loss adjustment exposure reserve 682,954 1,374,409
Unexpired risk reserve 4,680,268 3,511,982
Claims incurred but not reported 5,560,002 5,904,722
Unearned premium 8,445,890 8,568,774
Total insurance contract liabilities, gross 35,567,273 44,201,350
Recoverable from reinsurers
Re-insurance contract assets
Claims reported unsettled 12,330,475 17,754,866
Unexpired risk reserve - 458,646
Claims incurred but not reported 3,644,813 3,024,851
Unearned premium 7,015,389 4,502,070
Total reinsurers’ share of insurance liabilities 22,990,677 25,740,433
Net
Claims reported unsettled 3,867,684 7,086,597
Unallocated loss adjustment exposure reserve 682,954 1,374,409
Unexpired risk reserve 4,680,268 3,053,336
Claims incurred but not reported 1,915,189 2,879,871
Unearned premium 1,430,501 4,066,704

12,576,596 18,460,917
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Sharjah Insurance Company P.S.C.
Financial statements

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

1. Insurance and other receivables
2022 2021
AED AED
Receivables arising from insurance and reinsurance contracts
Due from policyholders 12,346,531 14,923,237
Due from local insurance companies 15,706,458 18,161,315
Due from foreign insurance companies 12,635,023 12,876,549
Due from brokers 460,533 481,043
Less: Expected credit losses (28,090,250) (28,090,250
13,058,295 18,351,894
Other receivables
Prepayments and others 1,711,051 3,824,985
14,769,346 22,176,879

The Company has adopted a policy of dealing with credit worthy countet parties. Adequate credit assessment is made
before accepting any insurance contracts from any counter party. The average credit period is 120 days.

The Company wiites off an insurance receivable when thete is information indicating that the debtor is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been placed under liquidation
or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings etc.

Before accepting any new customet, the Company assesses the potential customets’ credit quality and defines credit
limits by customet.

The Company always measures the loss allowance for receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. The expected
credit losses on insurance receivables are estimated using a provision matrix by reference to past default experience
of the debtor and an analysis of the debtot’s current financial position, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions of the industry in which the debtors operate and an assessment of both the
current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the teporting date. There has been no change in the estimation
techniques or significant assumptions made during the current reporting period.

Ageing of insurance receivables:

2022 2021

AED AED
0 - 90 days 4,634,282 5,916,953
91 - 180 days 2,817,003 3,305,771
181 - 270 days 1,307,460 3,471,756
Above 271 days 32,389,800 33,747,664
41,148,545 46,442,144
Less: Expected credit losses (28,090,250) (28,090,250)
13,058,295 18,351,894
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For the year ended 31 December 2022

11. Insurance and other receivables (continued)

Movements in allowance for impairment of financial assets

2022 2021
AED AED
Balance at 1 January 28,090,250 31,968,376
Reversal of impairment - (3,878,126)
Balance at the end of the year 28,090,250 28,090,250
12. Bank balances and cash
2022 2021
AED AED
Fixed deposits * 5,000,000 5,000,000
Cash on hand 43,187 25,878
Portfolio accounts 612,357 612,357
Cutrent and call accounts 33,524,807 48,493,090
39,180,351 54,131,325

* The interest rate on fixed deposits with banks is 0.50% to 0.75% (2021: is 0.50% to 0.75%) per annum. All fixed

deposits are held in local banks in the United Arab Emirates.

Bank balances and cash are held:

2022 2021

AED AED
Within U.A.E. 37,671,960 33,038,286
Outside UAE 1,508,391 21,093,039
39,180,351 54,131,325
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Sharjah Insurance Company P.S.C.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

13. Share capital

2022 2021
AED AED
Authorized, issued and fully paid:
150 million otdinary shares of AED 1 each
(2021: 137.5 million ordinary shares of AED 1 each) 150,000,000 137,500,000

During the year, the Assembly General Meeting held on 21 April 2022 approved the issuance of 12,500,000 bonus
shares amounted to AED 12,500,000, after obtaining initial approvals from regulatory authorities. The Company is
currently in process of completing legal procedures for capital increase including updating its commercial register
and article of association.

14, Reserves
141  Statutory reserve

In accordance with the UAE Federal Law No. (32) of 2021 concerning Commercial Companies and the Company’s
Articles of Association, 10% of profit is to be transferred to non-distributable legal reserve. The general assembly
may suspend such transfer whenever the balance of the legal resetrve equals 50% of the Company’s paid up shate
capital. This reserve is not available for distribution except as stipulated by the Law:.

142  Voluntary reserve

As per Atticles of association, voluntaty reserve can be created upon a recommendation of the Board of Directors
and this resetve cannot be utilized for any other purpose unless approved by the Ordinatily General meeting. No
transfer to voluntary reserve is made during 2021 and 2022,

143  Reinsurance reserve

In accordance with Insurance Authority’s Board of Directors® Decision No. 23 Article 34 of 2019, an amount of
AED 103,068 (2021: AED 90,537) was transferred from retained earnings to reinsurance reserve. The reserve is not
available for distribution and will not be disposed of without prior approval from Insurance Companies register of
the Central Bank of the U.A.E. (“CBUAE”).

15. Provision for employees’ end of service indemnity

Movements in the net liability were as follows:

2022 2021

AED AED
Balance at the beginning of the year 964,807 1,135,610
Charged duting the year 102,593 181,820
Paid during the year (210,670) (352,623)
856,730 964,807




Sharjah Insurance Company P.S.C.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

16. Insurance and other payables
2022 2021
AED AED
Payables arising from insurance and reinsurance contracts:
Due to policy holders and service providers 5,993,123 8,411,452
Due to local insurance companies 1,211,091 891,139
Due to foreign insurance companies 3,589,431 4,444 446
Due to brokers 201,305 68,321
Premium reserve withheld 6,481,430 5,223,390
17,476,380 19,038,748
Other payables
Accrued expenses and provisions 768,494 1,076,397
Rent received in advance 772,575 821,315
Unclaimed dividends 2,381,589 2,381,589
21,399,038 23,318,049
17. Leases
Lease liabilities ate presented in the statement of financial position as follows:
2022 2021
AED AED
Current 750,845 874,691
Non-cutrent 468,179 1,410,124
1,219,024 2,284,815

The Company has a building lease recognised as right-of use assets with lease term of 5 years.

The Company’s future minimum operating lease payments are as follows:

Within 1 year 1-5 years After 5 years Total
December 31, 2022 AED AED AED AED
Lease payments 786,120 475,703 = 1,261,823
Finance charges (35,275) (7,524) - (42,799)
Net present value 750,845 468,179 - 1,219,024
December 31, 2021
Lease payments 949,654 1,456,563 - 2,406,217
Finance charges (74,963) (46,439) - (121,402)
Net present value 874,691 1,410,124 - 2,284 815

During the ptior year, the loss relating to cancellation of lease contract with Ajman branch Rolla branches amounted
to AED 32,904 (Note 19) relating to disposal of lease contracts with carrying amount of AED 541,795.

During the curtent year, the Company conducted new lease agreements and terminated cutrently existing agreements
resulting in net decrease in lease liabilities by AED 277,468 and a gain amounted to AED 22,803, recognized in
statement of income as investment income (Note 19). Incremental borrowing rate used is 4% (2021: 4%).
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18. Net insurance premium revenue
2022 2021
AED AED
Gross premium written
Gross premium written 22,950,024 25,453,063
Change in unearned premium 122,884 3,746,607
Change in unexpired risk reserve (1,168,286) (1,011,099
21,904,622 28,188,571
Reinsurance premium ceded
Reinsurance premium ceded (20,613,680) (18,107,380)
Change in unearned premium 2,513,319 390,808
Change in unexpired risk reserve (458,646) (268,201)
(18,559,007) (17,984,773)
Net insurance premium revenue 3,345,615 10,203,798
19. Investment and other income, net
2022 2021
AED AED
Gain from disposal of financial investments at FVTPL 14,083,338 4,588,813
Unrealised gain on financial investments at FVTPL (Note 8) 2,011,494 12,029,252
Dividend from financial investments at FVTPL 10,579,863 2,118,700
Dividend from financial investments at FVOCI 3,475,759 2,635,545
Net income from investment propetties (Note 7) 2,473,806 2,438,314
Interest on bank deposits 147,014 146,669
Gain / (loss) on cancellation of leases (Note 17) 22,803 (32,904)
Other investment (expense) / income (222,055) 335,182
32,572,022 24,259,571
20. General and administrative expenses
2022 2021
AED AED
Staff cost 6,266,086 6,917,131
Legal and professional fee 1,386,827 1,554,906
Depreciation (Note 5) 871,298 1,105,802
Director's Remuneraton (Note 23) 750,000 950,000
Government and regulatory fees 359,173 550,614
Office expenses 132,424 158,250
Amortization (Note 6) 114,205 78,114
Bank charges 102,935 10,900
Miscellaneous 924,425 1,037,944
10,907,373 12,363,661

85% of the general and administrative expenses amounting to AED 8,548,767 (2021: AED 9,617,962) is allocated to
the underwriting activities, excluding the directot’s remuneration and management expenses, which is fully unallocated.
Unallocated portion is amounting to AED 2,358,606 (2021: AED 2,745,699).

42



Sharjah Insurance Company P.S.C.
Financial statements

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

2L Basic and diluted earnings per share
2022 2021
Profit for the year (in AED) 31,040,362 27,226,077
Weighted average number of shares 150,000,000 150,000,000
Basic and diluted earnings per share (in AED) (Restated) 0.21 0.18

Basic and diluted earnings per share have been calculated by dividing the profit for the year by the weighted average
number of shares outstanding at the end of the reporting period. Diluted earnings per share for the year ended
31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021 are equivalent to basic earnings per shate. The EPS for the year ended
31 December 2021 wete restated based on the number of shares after adjusting the bonus shares issued during
the year (Note 29).

22, Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and in banks net
of fixed deposits in banks with maturity over thtee months. Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the yeat as
shown in the statement of cash flows can be reconciled to the telated items in the statement of financial position
as follows:

2022 2021

AED AED
Bank balances and cash (Note 12) 39,180,351 54,131,325
Fixed deposit with original maturity over 3 months (Note 12) (5,000,000) (5,000,000)
34,180,351 49,131,325
Less: bank overdrafts (8,465) (19,876,488)
Cash and cash equivalents 34,171,886 29,254,837

Bank overdrafis facility

Duting the prior year, the Company availed bank overdraft facility and is secured by electronic custody of
investments designated at FVIPL having a fair value of AED 42.4 million (2021: AED 40.69 million) and
investments designated at FVTOCI having a fair value of AED Nil (2021: AED 6.11 million), by the bank’s

appointed broker.
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23. Related party transactions

Related parties include the Company’s major Shareholders, Directors and businesses controlled by them and their
families over which they exercise significant management influence as well as key management personnel.

At the end of the reporting year, amounts due from/to related patties included under due from policyholders and
gross outstanding claims wete as follows:

2022 2021
AED AED
Balances with major affiliates of shareholders and BOD
Due from policyholders 6,000,358 28,660
Due to policyholders (30,553) (30,553)
Outstanding claims (3,184,733) (95,419)
Rights-of-use asset 969,647 1,582,055
Lease liability (1,141,869) (1,827,389)

The amounts outstanding are unsecured and payable on demand.
Transactions:

During the year, the Company entered into the following transactions with related parties:

2022 2021
AED AED
Transactions with major affiliates of shareholders and BOD
Gross premium written 3,626,475 612,489
Claims paid (2,433,782) (58,200)
Lease liability repayments (745,000) (745,000)

The Company has entered into above transactions with related parties which were made on substantially the same
terms, as those prevailing at the same time for comparable transactions with third patties.

Compensation of boatd of directors/key management personnel

2022 2021

AED AED
Short-term benefits 580,000 580,000
Directot's remuneration (Note 20) 750,000 950,000
Long-term benefits 68,627 54,819

24, Contingent liabilities and capital commitments

The Company, in common with the significant majority of insurers, is subject to litigation in the normal course of
its business. The Company, based on independent legal advice, has considered that existing provision is adequate
to cover probable outflow of these court cases.
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25. Insurance risk

The risk under any one insurance contract is the possibility that the insured event occurs and the uncertainty of
the amount of the resulting claim. By the nature of an insurance conttact, this tisk is tandom and therefore
unpredictable.

For a portfolio of insurance contracts where the theory of probability is applied to pricing and provisioning, the
principal risk that the Company faces under its insurance contracts is that the actual claims and benefit payments
exceed the cartying amount of the insurance liabilities. This could occur because the frequency or sevetity of claims
and benefits are greater than estimated. Insurance events are random and the actual number and amount of claims
and benefits will vary from year to year from the estimate established using statistical techniques.

Experience shows that the larger the portfolio of similar insurance contracts, the smaller the relative vatiability
about the expected outcome will be. In addition, a more diversified portfolio is less likely to be affected across the
board by a change in any subset of the portfolio. The Company has developed its insurance underwriting strategy
to diversify the type of insurance risks accepted and within each of these categories to achieve a sufficiently large
population of risks to reduce the variability of the expected outcome.

The Company manages risks through its underwriting strategy, adequate reinsurance arrangements and proactive
claims handling. The underwtiting strategy attempts to ensute that the underwritten risks are well diversified in
terms of type and amount of risk, industry and geography. Underwriting limits ate in place to enforce approptiate
risk selection criteria.

25,1 Freguency and severity of claims

The Company has the right not to renew individual policies, re-price the risk, impose deductibles and reject the
payment of a fraudulent claim. Insurance contracts also entitle the Company to pursue third parties for payment
of some or all costs (for example, subrogation).

Property insurance contracts are underwritten by reference to the commercial replacement value of the properties
and contents insured, and claim payment limits are always included to cap the amount payable on occurrence of
the insured event. Cost of rebuilding properties, of replacement or indemnity for contents and time taken to restart
operations for business interruption are the key factors that influence the level of claims under these policies.
Property insurance contracts are subdivided into four risk categories: fire, business interruption, weather damage
and theft. The insurance tisk atising from these contracts is not concentrated in any of the territories in which the
Company operates, and there is a balance between commercial and personal properties in the overall portfolio of
insutred buildings.

The reinsurance arrangements include excess and catastrophe coverage. The effect of such reinsurance
atrangements is that the Company should not suffer net insurance losses of a set limit of AED 50,000 in any one
motot policy. The Company has survey units dealing with the mitigation of risks sutrounding claims. This unit
investigates and recommends ways to imptove tisk claims. The tisks are reviewed individually at least once in 3
years and adjusted to reflect the latest information on the underlying facts, cutrent law, jurisdiction, contractual
terms and conditions, and other factors. The Company actively manages and pursues eatly settlements of claims
to reduce its exposure to unpredictable developments.
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25. Insurance risk (contnued)
252 Sources of nncertainty in the estimation of future claim payments

Claims on insurance contracts are payable on a claims-occuttence basis. The Company is liable for all insured events
that occurred during the term of the contract, even if the loss is discovered after the end of the contract term. As a
tesult, liability claims are settled over a long period of time and element of the claims provision includes incurred but
not reported claims (IBNR). The estimation of IBNR is generally subject to a greater degree of uncertainty than the
estimation of the cost of settling claims already notified to the Company, whete information about the claim event is
available. IBNR claims may not be apparent to the insured until many years after the event that gave rise to the claims,

For some insurance contracts, the IBNR proportion of the total liability is high and will typically display greater
variations between initial estimates and final outcomes because of the greater degree of difficulty of estimating these
liabilities. In estimating the liability for the cost of teported claims not yet paid, the Company considers information
available from loss adjusters and information on the cost of settling claims with similar chatacteristics in previous
periods. Company has involved external actuatial valuer’s as well. Latge claims are assessed on a case-by-case basis or
projected separately in otder to allow for the possible distortive effect of their development and incidence on the rest
of the portfolio.

The estimated cost of claims includes direct expenses to be incurted in settling claims, net of the expected
subrogation value and other recoveties. The Company takes all reasonable steps to ensure that it has appropriate
information regarding its claims exposures. However, given the uncertainty in establishing claims provisions, it is
likely that the final outcome will prove to be different from the original liability established.

The amount of insurance claims is particulatly sensitive to the level of court awatds and to the development of
legal precedent on matters of contract and tort. Insurance contracts are also subject to the emergence of new types
of latent claims, but no allowance is included for this at the reporting date.

Where possible, the Company adopts multiple techniques to estimate the required level of provisions. This
provides a greater understanding of the trends inherent in the experience being projected. The projections given
by the various methodologies also assist in estimating the range of possible outcomes. The most appropriate
estimation technique is selected taking into account the characteristics of the business class and the extent of the
development of each accident year.

In calculating the estimated cost of unpaid claims (both reported and not), the Company’s estimation techniques
are a combination of loss-tatio-based estimates and an estimate based upon actual claims experience using
ptedetermined formulae where greater weight is given to actual claims experience as time passes. The initial loss-
ratio estimate is an important assumption in the estimation technique and is based on previous years’ expetience,
adjusted for factors such as premium rate changes, anticipated market expetience and historical claims inflation.
The initial estimate of the loss ratios used for the current year (before reinsurance) are analyzed below by type of
tisk whete the insured operates for current and prior year premiums earned.

Type of risk 2022 2021
Motor 55-60% 45-50%
Non-motor 45-50% 10-15%

46



Sharjah Insurance Company P.S.C.
Financial statements

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

25, Insurance risk (continued)
253 Process used to decide on assuniptions

The risks associated with these insurance contracts ate complex and subject to a number of variables that
complicate quantitative sensitivity analysis. Internal data is derived mostly from the Company’s quarterly claims
reports and screening of the actual insurance contracts carried out at the end of the reporting period to derive data
for the contracts held. The Company has reviewed the individual contracts and in particular the industries in which
the insured companies operate and the actual exposure years of claims. This information is used to develop
scenarios related to the latency of claims that ate used for the ptojections of the ultimate number of claims.

The choice of selected results for each accident year of each class of business depends on an assessment of the
technique that has been most appropriate to observed historical developments. In certain instances, this has meant
that different techniques or combinations of techniques have been selected for individual accident years ot groups
of accident years within the same class of business.

Substantally all of the Company’s underwtiting activities ate catried out in the United Arab Emirates.

254 Reinsurance risk

In common with other insutance companies, in order to minimize financial exposure arising from large insurance
claims, the Company, in the normal course of business, entets into atrrangement with other parties for reinsurance

purposes.

To minimize its exposute to significant losses from teinsuter insolvencies, the Company evaluates the financial
condition of its reinsurers and monitors concenttrations of credit risk arising from similar geographic regions,
activities or economic characteristics of the reinsurers. Reinsurance ceded contracts do not relieve the Company
from its obligations to policyholders. The Company temains liable to its policyholders for the portion reinsured
to the extent that any reinsurer does not meet the obligations assumed under the reinsurance agreements.

255 Sensitivity of underwriting profit and losses

The contribution by the insurance operations is a profit of AED 159 thousand for the year ended
31 December 2022 (2021: profit of AED 3.5 million). The Company does not foresee any major impact from
insurance operations to the Company’s results and expects to increase the contribution by insurance operations
to the profitability due to the following reasons:

The Company has an overall retention level of 10% (2021: 29%) and the decrease is mainly contributed by decline
in Motot line of business wherein the tetention level is lower. However, in this class, the risk is adequately covered
by quota shate reinsurance programs to guard against major financial impact.

The Company eatns a net commission and other underwriting income of AED 4.4 milion (2021:
AED 4.5 million). These commissions atise ptimarily from the reinsurance placements and are a consistent and
recurting source of income.

47



Sharjah Insurance Company P.S.C.
Financial statements

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

26. Capital risk management

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are:

° to comply with the insutance capital requirements required by U.A.E. Federal Law No. 6 of 2007, on
Establishment of Insurance Companies register of the Central Bank of the U.AE. (“CBUAE”) (formetly
Insurance Authority of UAE.).

e to safeguard the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern so that it can continue to provide returns

for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders; and

° to provide an adequate return to shareholders by pricing insurance contracts commensurately with the
level of risk.

In U.A.E., Insurance Companies register of the Central Bank of the U.A.E. (“CBUAE”) specifies the minimum
amount and type of capital that must be held by the Company in addition to its insurance liabilities. The minimum
tequired capital (presented in the table below) must be maintained at all times throughout the year.

The table below summatizes the minimum required capital of the Company and the total capital held.

2022 2021
AED AED
Total capital held 150,000,000 137,500,000
Minimum regulatory capital 100,000,000 100,000,000
Solvency Capital Requirement (SCR) 74,050,097 76,173,534
Minimum Guarantee Fund (MGF) 24,683,366 25,391,178
Owy funds
Basic own funds 191,986,419 183,083,709
MCR solvency matgin - (surplus) 91,986,419 83,083,709
SCR solvency margin - (surplus) 117,936,322 106,910,175
MGEF solvency margin - (sutplus) 167,303,054 157,692,531

The UAE Insurance Companies registet of the Central Bank of the U.A.E. (“CBUAE?) has issued resolution no.
42 for 2009 setting the minimum subsctibed ot paid-up capital of AED 100 million for establishing insurance
firms. The resolution also stipulates that at least 75 petcent of the capital of the insurance companies established
in the UAE should be owned by UAE or GCC national individuals or corporate bodies. Duting the year, the
company declared 12.5 million bonus share that increased the total capital held to AED 150 million,

Further, as per Article (8) of section (2) of financial regulations issued for insurance companies in UAE., the
Company shall at all times comply with the requirements of solvency margin. As of 31 December 2022, the
Company has complied with the requitements of solvency margin.
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26. Capital risk management (continued)

26.1 Gearing ratio

The Company reviews the capital structure on a regular basis. As part of this review, the Company considers the

cost of capital and the risks associated with capital.

The gearing ratio at the yeatrend was as follows:

2022 2021

AED AED

Debt (Note 22) 8,465 19,876,488
Bank balances and cash (Note 12) (39,180,351) (54,131,325)
Net debt (39,171,886) (34,254,837)
Shareholders’ funds (i) 248,604,765 230,294,424
Net debt to equity ratio Favorable Favorable

(i) Shareholders’ funds include share capital, statutory reserve, voluntary reserve, reinsurance reserve, and

cumulative changes in fair value of financial investments designated at FVOCI and retained earnings.
27. Financial risk management

The Company is exposed to a range of financial risks through its financial assets, financial liabilities, due from /
to insurance and reinsurance companies. In particular, the key financial risk is that in the long-term its investment
proceeds are not sufficient to fund the obligations arising from its insurance and investment contracts. The most
important components of this financial risk are interest rate risk, equity price risk, foreign currency risk and credit

risk,

27.1  Categories of financial instruments

2022 2021
AED AED
Financial assets
Financial investments designated at FVOCI 36,986,809 50,685,171
Financial investments at FVTPL 134,255,729 108,714,402
Statutory deposit at amortized cost 5,000,000 5,000,000
Insurance and other receivables at amottized cost
(excluding prepayments) * 13,908,899 21,210,317
Bank balances and cash — non-interest bearing 34,180,351 49.131,325
Bank balances and cash - interest bearing 5,000,000 5,000,000
Total 229,331,788 239,741,215
Financial liabilities at amortized cost
Bank overdrafts 8,465 19,876,488
Lease liabilities 1,219,024 2,284,815
Insurance and other payables (excluding accruals
and non-financial liabilities) 19,857,969 21,420,337
Total 21,085,458 43,246,761

* Insurance and other teceivables include prepayments as at 31 December 2022 amounted to AED 860,447 (2021:

AED 966,562).

49



Sharjah Insurance Company P.S.C.
Financial statements

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

27. Financial risk management (continued)

27.1  Categories of financial instrunents (continued)

Management considers that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recognized at amortized

cost in the financial statements approximate their fair values.
27.2  Fair valne measturements

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are determined as follows:

o The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities with standatd terms and conditions and traded on
active liquid markets are determined with reference to quoted market bid prices at the close of the business

on the reporting date.

° The fair values of other financial assets and financial liabilities are determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis using prices from observable curtent

market transactions and dealer quotes for similar instrument.
Fair value and related valuation techniques for financial and non-financial assets is as follow:

Fair value as at

31 December 31 December Significant
2022 2021 Fair value  Valuation techniques unobservable
AED AED hierarchy and key inputs input
Investment
designated at
FVOCI
Quoted equity 32,285,645 47,599,464 Level 1 Quoted bid prices inan  None
secutities active matket.
Unquoted equity 4,701,164 3,085,707 Level 3 Multiple based and Net asset
securities OTC based market value

valuation methods.

Investment at

FVIPL
Quoted equity 133,910,440 108,360,339 Level 1 Quoted bid prices inan  None
Securities active market,
Unquoted equity 345,289 354,063 Level 3 Net assets valuation Netasset
securities method. value
Investment 53,104,355 51,949,400 Level 3 - Income approach Projected
properties considering projected cashflows

cashflows and
occupancy ratio.
- Market approach

224,346,893 211,348,973

Relationship of
unobservable
inputs to fair

value

N/A

Higher the net
assets, value of
the investees,
higher the fair
value.

N/A

Higher the net
assets, value of
the investees,
higher the fair
value,

Higher the
projected
cashflows,
higher the fair
value.
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27. Financial risk management (continued)
27.2  Fair value measurements (continued)

Movement in level 3 assets is as follows:

Opening Additions/ Revaluation Closing
Category balance (Disposals) impact balance
AED AED AED AED
31 December 2022
Financial assets:
Unquoted equity securities 3,439,770 - 1,606,683 5,046,453
Investment properties 51,949,400 - 1,154,955 53,104,355
55,389,170 - 2,761,638 58,150,308
31 December 2021
Financial assets:
Ungquoted equity securities 3,123 364 1,104,842 (788,436) 3,439,770
Investment properties 53,450,000 - (1,500,600) 51,949,400
56,573,364 1,104,842 (2,289,0306) 55,389,170

Thete was no transfer between the levels during the current year. Thete are no financial liabilities which should
be measuted at fair value and accotdingly, no disclosure is made in the above table.

27.3  Market risk

The Company’s activities expose it primarily to the financial risks of changes in foreign currency exchange rates
and interest rates. Market risk comptises three types of risk: foreign currency rates, interest rate tisk, and equity
price tisk.

Market risk exposures are measured using sensitivity analysis. There has been no change to the Company’s
exposute to market tisks or the manner in which it manages and measures the risk.

27.3.1  Foreign currency risk

Currency tisk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange
rates. The Company is not exposed to significant currency risk because the Company's significant transactions,
assets and liabilities are dominated in its functional cutrency. There ate no significant exchange rate risks as
substantially all financial assets and financial liabilities are denominated in Arab Emirates Dirhams, other G.C.C.
cutrencies or US Dollars to which the Dirham is fixed.

27.3.2  Interest risk

The Company’s exposute to vatiable interest rate risk relates to its bank deposits and overdrafts. At 31 December
2022, bank deposits carried interest at the range of 0.50% to 0.75% (2021: 0.50% to 0.75% per annum) and bank
overdraft carried interest rate at EIBOR plus 1.5% per annum (2021: 1.5% per annum).

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/lower throughout the year and all other variables were held
constant, the Company’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2022 and equity as at 31 December 2022 would
increase/decrease by approximately AED 42 (2021: AED 99,382).

The Company’s sensitivity to interest rates has not changed significantly from the prior year.
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27. Financial risk management (continued)
27.3  Market risk (continued)
27.3.3 Egquity price risk

Market price risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
prices. The financial instruments that expose the Company to market price risk consist primarily of financial assets
carried at FVIPL and FVOCI. To manage such risks, the Company diversifies its investments based on advance
decision to allocate assets to different classes, and following up with market conditions and trends, in addition to
management estimates of short and long term changes in fair value.

27.3.3.1 Sensitivity analysis

At the end of the reporting period, if the equity prices are 10% higher/lower as per the assumptions mentioned
below and all the other variables were held constant, the Company’s:

° profit for the year would have increased/decteased by AED 13.4 million (2021: AED 10.87 million).
° other comprehensive income/(loss) and equity would have increased/decreased by AED 3.7 million (2021:
AED 5.07 million).

27.3.3.2 Method and assumptions for sensitivity analysis

o The sensitivity analysis has been done based on the exposute to equity price risk at the reporting date.

. At the end of the repotting period, if equity ptices ate 10% higher/lower on the masket value uniformly fot
all equities while all other vatiables are held constant, the impact on profit or loss and equity has been shown
above.

A 10% change in equity prices has been used to give a realistic assessment as a plausible event.
274 Credit risk
Credit risk refers to the risk that a counter party will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss

to the Company.

Key areas where the Company is exposed to credit risk are:

reinsurets’ share of insurance liabilities;

amounts due from reinsurers in respect of claims already paid;
amounts due from insurance contract holders; and

amounts due from insurance intermediaries;

The Company has adopted a policy of dealing with creditworthy counterparties as a means of mitigating the risk
of financial loss from defaults. The Company’s exposure and the credit ratings of its counterparties are
continuously monitored and the agpregate value of transactions concluded is spread amongst approved
counterparties. Credit exposure is controlled by counterparty limits that are reviewed and approved by
Management annually.
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27. Financial risk management (continued)
274 Credit risk (continmed)

Reinsurance is used to manage insurance risk. This does not, however, discharge the Company’s liability as primary
insurer. If a reinsurer fails to pay a claim for any reason, the Company remains liable for the payment to the
policyholder. The creditworthiness of teinsurers is considered on an annual basis by reviewing their financial
strength prior to finalization of any contract.

The Company maintains recotrds of the payment history for significant contract holders with whom it conducts
regular business. The exposute to individual counterparties is also managed by other mechanisms, such as the
right of offset where counterpatties are both debtors and creditors of the Company. Management information
reported to the Company includes details of provisions for impairment on insurance receivables and subsequent
write-offs. Exposures to individual policyholders and groups of policyholders are collected within the ongoing
monitoring of the conttols. Whete there exists significant exposure to individual policyholders, or homogenous
groups of policyholders, a financial analysis equivalent to that conducted for reinsurers is cartied out by the

Company.

For receivables the Company has applied the simplified approach in IFRS 9 to measure the loss allowance at
lifetime ECL. The Company determines the expected credit losses on these items by using a provision matrix,
estimated based on historical credit loss experience based on the past due status of the debtors, adjusted as
appropriate to reflect current conditions and estimates of future economic conditions. Accordingly, the credit risk
profile of these assets is presented based on their past due status in terms of the provision matrix.

Insurance receivables consist of a large number of customers, spread across diverse industries and geographical
ateas. Ongoing credit evaluation is petformed on the financial condition of insurance receivable.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company’s maximum exposute to credit risk, from insurance receivables
situated outside the U.A.E. were as follows:

2022 2021

AED AED
Europe and Asia 5,170,242 2,881,339
Other Arab countries 7,109,228 9,995,210

The Company has no significant concentration of credit risk, with exposure spread over a large number of
counterpatties and customers. The Company defines counterparties as having similar characteristics if they are
related entities. The credit tisk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties are banks with high credit-

ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial statements, which is net of impairment losses,
represents the Company’s maximum exposute to ctedit risk.

27.5  Ligudity risk

The ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the Board of Directors, which has built an
appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the management of the Company’s shott, medium and long-
term funding and liquidity management requirements. The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate
reserves by continuously monitoting forecast and actual cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial
assets and liabilities.
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27. Financial risks management (continued)

275 Liguidity risk (continned)

The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Company’s financial instruments. The contractual
matutities of the financial instruments have been determined on the basis of the remaining period at the reporting
date to the contractual matutity date. The maturity profile is monitored by management to ensure adequate liquidity
is maintained. The matutity profile of the financial assets and financial liabilities at the reporting date based on
contractual repayment arrangements was as follows:

31 December 2022

Financial assets

Investments designated at
FVOCI

Financial investment at FVIPL

Statutory deposit

Insurance and other receivables -
excluding prepayments*

Bank balances and cash —non

interest bearing
Bank balances and cash —

interest bearing

Financial liabilities
Insurance and other payables
(excluding accruals and non-
financial liabilides)

Lease liabilities

Bank overdrafts

31 December 2021
Financial assets
Investments designated at

FVOCI
Financial investment at FVTPL

Statutory deposit
Insurance and other receivables -

excluding prepayments*
Bank balances and cash — non
interest bearting
Bank balances and cash —
interest bearing

Financial liabilities

Insurance and other payables
(excluding accruals and non-
financial liabilities)

Lease liabilities

Bank overdrafts

Less than 181 - 365 Above 365
30 days 31-90 days  91-180 days days days Total
AED AED AED AED AED AED
- - - - 36,986,809 36,986,809
134,255,729 - - - - 134,255,729
- - - - 5,000,000 5,000,000
2,550,306 2,934,580 2,817,002 5,607,011 - 13,908,899
34,180,351 - - B - 34,180,351
- - - - 5,000,000 5,000,000
170,986,386 2,934,580 2,817,002 5,607,011 46,986,809 229,331,788
3,513,013 9,886,084 3,642,826 2,816,046 - 19,857,969
58,348 116,139 196,342 380,016 468,179 1,219,024
8,465 - - . . 8,465
3,579,826 10,002,223 3,839,168 3,196,062 468,179 21,085,458
- - - - 50,685,171 50,685,171
108,714,402 - - - - 108,714,402
- - - - 5,000,000 5,000,000
5,553,780 3,221,596 3,305,771 6,453,076 2,676,094 21,210,317
49,131,325 B - - - 49,131,325
- . - - 5,000,000 5,000,000
163,399,507 3,221,596 3,305,771 6,453,076 63,361,265 239,741,215
5,117,578 9,470,222 4,088,356 2,744,181 - 21,420,337
56,106 159,353 217,587 441,645 1,410,124 2,284 815
19,876,488 £ - - - 19,876,488
25,050,172 9,629,575 4,305,943 3,185,826 1,410,124 43,581,640
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28. Segment information

The Company is organized into two segments: Underwriting and investments. Underwriting segment incorporates
accident and liabilides insurance, fire insurance, matine insurance and other classes of insurance. Investments
segment includes investments inside and outside U.A.E. marketable equity securities, term deposits with banks
and investment properties.

These segments are the basis on which the Company reports its primary segment information to the Managing
Ditector.

Insurance premium represents the total income arising from insurance contracts. The Company does not conduct
any business outside U.A.E. Thete ate no transactions between the business segments.
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29. Dividends

At the Annual General Meeting held on 21 April 2022, Shateholdets apptoved a cash dividend of AED 11,010,500 (AED
8 fils per share) for the year ended 31 December 2021 and bonus shares distribution of AED 12,500,000. Shareholdets
also approved Board of Ditectors remuneration of AED 750,000 for 2021.

Based on the results and in accordance with Notice No. CBUAE/BSD/2022/4697, the Board of Ditectors has decided
to approach the Central Bank of the UAE to obtain approval for the announcement of proposed dividend for the year
2022 to shareholders.

30. Approval of the financial statements

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and authorized for issue on 16 March 2023,

31. Comparative figures

Certain comparative figures were reclassified to match the current year’s classification, This re-classification has no impact
in the total assets, liabilities and retained earnings of the ptior year except as follow:

31 December 2021 - 31 December 2021 -

as pteviously reported  Reclassification as cutrently reported

Statement of financial position AED AED AED
Insurance and other receivables 21,355,564 821,315 22.176,879
Total current assets 209,941,724 821,315 210,763,039
Total assets 320,118,618 821,315 320,939,933
Insurance and other payables 22,496,734 821,315 23,318,049
Total current liabilities 87,449,263 821,315 88,270,578
Total liabilities 89,824,194 821,315 90,645,509
Total equity and liabilities 320,118,618 821,315 320,939,933

Futther, the management has resolved to change the presentation of the underwriting operation for a more detailed
presentation in the statement of income, this change had no impact on the net underwriting results and results of
operations for the year ended 31 December 2021.

32 Subsequent events

Thete have been no events subsequent to the statement of financial position date that would significantly affect the
amounts reported in the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 December 2022.
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